
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

2007 
Three Months Ended 

(unaudited) 
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

Revenue. 

Gross profit .. 

Income/{Ioss) from continuing operations 

Income/(Ioss) from discontinued operations .. 

Net income/noss) ... 

Earnings/{Ioss) per share - basic from continuing 
operations 

Loss per share - basic from discontinued 
operations 

Net income/(Ioss) per share - basic. 

Earnings/{Ioss) per share - diluted from continuing 
operations ...... . 

Net income/{Ioss) per share - diluted from 
discontinued operations ................. . 

Net income/(Ioss) per share - diluted. 

22. Commitments and Contingencies 

$34,119 

$14,295 

$ 767 
(124) 

$ 643 

$ 0.02 

$ (0.00) 

$ 0.02 

$ 0.02 

$ (0.00) 

$ 0.02 

$35,336 

$10,681 

$ (5,993) 

~ 
$ (6,138) 

$ (0.15) 

$ (0.00) 

$ (0.15) 

$ (0.15) 

$ (000) 

$ (015) 

$37,635 

$14,138 

$ 1,716 
54 

$ 1,770 

$ 0.04 

$ 0.00 

$ 0.04 

$ 0.04 

$ 0.00 

$ 0.04 

$37,078 

$14,987 

$ 2,498 

~ 
$ 2,437 

$ 0.06 

$ (0.00) 

$ 0.06 

$ 0.06 

$ (0.00) 

$ 0.06 

The Company has been notified that some customers may seek indemnification under its contractual 

arrangements with those customers for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of certain 

patents through the use of our products and services in combination with the use of products and services of 

multiple other vendors. The Company will continue to negotiate with these customers in good faith because the 

Company believes its technology does not infringe on the cited patents and due to specific clauses within the 
customer contractual arrangements that mayor may not give rise to an indemnification obligation. Although the 

Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters, we do not expect the resolutions will have a 

material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers 

and a director, and several investment banks that were the undelWriters of our initial public offering (the 

"Underwriters"): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et aI., United States District Court for the 

Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of 

damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common 

Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters 
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers 

in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make additional 

purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs allege that all 

of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act. and that the underwriters violated 

Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act. and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of violation of 

Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15, 2005, the 
District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer 

defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar 

order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar 

order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 

2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of 
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(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter 

defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Bane with the Second Circuit on January 5, 

2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied plaintiffs' 

rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited class in the District Court. 

On June 25,2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On November 13, 2007, the 

issuer defendants in certain designated "focus cases" filed a motion to dismiss the second consolidated 

amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District Court issued an 

Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in the "focus cases." 

We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased Directors and 

Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result from these claims, 

but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be covered by the 

insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have been named in 

nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the 

lawsuit against us. 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against 

Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement 

related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only 

Experience ("the '748 patent"), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan 

Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 

infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million 

for past damages and a 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the validity 

of the patent. After the jury verdict. both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's post-trial 

motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction prohibiting any 

further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any appeal that may be 

filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding of willful infringement. 

We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district court to U.S. Court of Appeals for 

the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for reexamination of the '748 patent 

claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United States Patent and Trademark Office 

granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the '748 patent. There can be no assurances to 

what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could become subject to 

counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. To date, the Company has not received or 

recorded any amounts related to this jury award. 

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal 

proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the 

ordinary course of our business. 

23. Related Party Transactions 

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of 

relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive 

Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a 

member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is 

subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at the 

sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to us, 

including wit~out limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to us or 

the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions apply. 

Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become available in 

the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at this new 

development site. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

By:~/s~/ ____________ ~M~Au~R~lc~E~B~.~T~o~sE~· ____________ __ 

Maurice B. Tose 

Chief Executive Officer. President and 

Chairman of the Board 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. The 

undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tose, Thomas M. Brandt Jr. and Bruce A. White, and 

each of them. their true and lawful agents and attorneys-in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and 

attorneys-in-fact, and in anyone or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as 

directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The undersigned 

hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact. and anyone or more of them, as herein 
authorized 

Name Title Date 

151 MAURICE B. TOSE Chief Executive Officer, President and March 3, 2009 

Maurice B. Tose Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive 
Officer) 

lsi THOMAS M. BRANDT, JR. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice March 3, 2009 

Thomas M. Brandt. Jr. President (Principal Financial Officer) and 
Director 

151 JAMES M. BETHMANN Director March 3, 2009 

James M. Bethmann 

151 CLYDE A. HEINTZELMAN Director March 3, 2009 

Clyde A. Heintzelman 

151 JAN c. HULY Director March 3, 2009 

Jan C. Huly 

151 RICHARD A. KOZAK Director March 3, 2009 

Richard A. Kozak 

Director March 3, 2009 

Weldon H. Latham 

151 BYRON F. MARCHANT Director March 3, 2009 

Byron F. Marchant 

151 RICHARD A. YOUNG Executive Vice President, Chief Operating March 3, 2009 

Richard A. Young Officer and Director 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 3D, 2004) 

4.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30. 2004) 

4.3 Form of Class A Common Stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

4.5 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement for each of 
the investors party to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 13, 2004. (Incorporated by 
reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004) 

4.6 Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Purchasers named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31, 2005) 

4.7 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 
2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report 
on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 

4.8 Notes issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 to each of the Purchasers 
named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for 
the year ended December 31, 2005) 

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Investors named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31, 2005) 

4.10 Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Bonanza 
Master Fund Ltd., as Agent, and the Secured Parties named therein (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 

4.11 Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Silicon Valley Bank, and the 
Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as 
amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 

10.1 West Garrett Office Building Full service Lease Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the 
Company and West Garrett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-355221) 

10.2t Form of Indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement 
on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.3t Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the 
Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on 
June 17, 2004 (No. 000-308211) 

10At First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-136072)) 

10.5t Optionee Agreement dated October 1,1997 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.6t Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.7t Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.8t Optionee Agreement dated July 29,1998 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt. Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.9t Optionee Agreement dated April 1, 1999 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.lOt 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the Company dated January 1, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-51656)) 
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Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

10.11 t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.12t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.13t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Drew A. Morin. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.14t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Timothy J. Lorello. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.15=1: Services Integration Agreement dated January 31. 2002 by and between the Company and Hutchison 3G. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2001) 

10.16 Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLC and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002) 

10.17t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.18t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.19t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.20t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (IAcorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.21 t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. Latham. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.22t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.23t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.24t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.25t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.26t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.27t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.28t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.29t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.30t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.31 t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.32t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 
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Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

10.33 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 18, 2003 by and among the Company and the 
investors party to the 2003 SPA. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company's Current Report 
on Form 8-K dated December 18, 2003) 

10.34 Trademark License Agreement by and among Aether, TSYS and the Company dated as of January 13, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004) 

10.35 Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Aether dated as of January 13, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004) 

10.36 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon Valley 
Bank. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2004) 

10.37t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31.2005) 

10.38t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 

10.39t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon F. Latham (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended. for the year ended December 31,2005) 

10.40t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Byron F. Marchant (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended. for the year ended December 31. 2005) 

10.46 Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon 
Valley Bank (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2005) 

10.47t Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement 

10.48t Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement 

10.49t Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement 

12.1 Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule II 

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP 

23.2 Consent of James Cowper 

31.1 Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

31.2 Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

99.01 Report of Independent Auditors- James Cowper 

t Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) 
of Form 10-K. 

:I: Confidential treatment has been for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 
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Corporate Information 

Board of Directors 

Maurice B. Tose 
Chairman of the Board 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

James M. Bethmann 
Managing Director 
The Caldwell Partners International 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada 

Thomas M. Brandt. Jr. 
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Clyde A. Heintzelman 
Executive Chairman 
Diet Brown 
Seattle, Washington 

Lt. Gen. Jan C. Huly (USMC. Ret.) 
Annandale. Virginia 

Senior Corporate Executives 

Maurice B. Tose 
Chairman of the Board 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Richard A. Young 
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer 

Thomas M. Brandt. Jr. 
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 

Drew A. Morin 
Senior Vice President 
and Chief Technology Officer 

Richard A. Kozak 
Chief Executive Officer 
R&D2, LLC 
Annapolis, Maryland 

Weldon H. Latham 
Senior Partner 
Davis Wright Tremaine LlP 
Washington, D.C. 

Byron F. Marchant 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
The u.s. Naval Academy 
Alumni Association and Foundation 
Annapolis, Maryland 

Richard A. Young 
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Timothy J. Lorello 
Senior Vice President 
Commercial Sales 
and Chief Marketing Officer 

Dan A. Allen 
Senior Vice President 
Service Bureau Operations 

Michael D. Bristol. Sr. 
Senior Vice President 
Government Solutions Group 

caution Concel'lling forward-Looking Statements 

Stockholder Information 

Stock Listing 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Class A 
common stock is traded on the NASDAQ 
Global Market under the symbol TSYS. 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company 
New York, New York 

Form 10-K 
Additional copies of this annual report on 
Form lO-K, as filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, are available without 
charge upon request from the company. 
Copies also are available for download via 
the investor section at wwwtelecomsys.com 

Annual Meeting 
The annual meeting of shareholders will be 
held at 10:00 a.m. on June 11, 2009 at 
The Westin Annapolis 
100 Westgate Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland. 

This document includes certain "forward_looking ~atements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. for example, the statements that (i) the com­

pany holds the promise of continued profitable growth; (ii) significant sales of inuementallicensed SMS capacity, maintenance and professional selVlce revenues are expected for several 

years to come; (iii) we have invested to efficiently serve next generation carrier architectures; (iv) we anticipate selling into the China market; (v) we are expanding telematics opportuni. 

ties with a growing base of customers and partners; (vi) certain government systems deals have potential for higher revenue and that a healthy backlog of orders and unfunded options 

are tikely to be exercised in 2009; (vii) investments in teleport infrastructure should contribute to significant growth in 2009; (viii) we believe our patent enforcement efforts will result in 

a successful outcome; (ix) we are focused on market niches where growth and profitability are promising; and (x) that our products and services selVe recession-resistant needs are some 

of the forward-looking statements in this document. These statements involve risks and uncert~inties, al"ld actual results may diHer milterially. Factors that could cause or contribute to 
such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed elsewhere in the Company's filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned not to place 

undue reliance on the forward.looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revisions to 

the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document. 

ReconcIUation of EBrJDA to Net Income/CLoss) 

EBITDA is not a financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting rrinciples (GAAP) and should not be considered as an alter­

native to net income. opE'rating income, or any other financial measures so cakulated and presented, nor as an altel.lativE' tn ra~h flow from operatmg activities as a measure 

of our liquidity. We present EBITDA because we believe it to be an important supplemental measure ot our performance that is commonly used by securities analysts, inves­

tors, and other interested parties in the evaluation of cnmpilnip.~ in Ollr industry. Management also uses this informiltion intemally for forecasting and budgeting. It may not 

be indicative of the historical operating results of TCS nor is it intended to be predictive of potential future results. 

(S in millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Net income/(loss) on a GAAP basis So (18.5) So (11.5) So (2t.7) So (1.3) I 57.6 

Depredation and amortization 7.9 9.6 9.3 7.7 8.1 

Non-cash stock-based compensation 1.2 0.7 3.1 4.3 3.8 

Financing and other expenses (incl. debt conversion expense in 2004) 11.1 1.3 3.2 4.6 0.9 

Discontinued operations 2.6 7.2 23.7 0.3 

Benefit for income taxes (33.3) 

Gain on sale of eatent (8.1) 

EBITDA from continuing operations 4.3 7.3 I 17.6 15.6 S 29.0 _ht 
Copyright 0 2009 TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (TCS). All rights reserved. Enabling Convergent Technologie~, SwiftLink", Xypoint", LivewirE911'-, RAVE911'·, and Wireless 

InteRigent GatE!WayTM are tr<ldemarks of TCS. All other trademarks are the property of their respective comp<lnies. Information subject to change without notice. I NasdaqGM: TSYS 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarter ended March 31. 2009 

OR 
TRANSACTION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Commission File No. 0-30821 

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

MARYLAND 52-1526369 
(State or Other Jurisdiction of 
Incorporation or Organization) 

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

275 West Street. Annapolis, MD 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

(410) 263-7616 

21401 
(Zip Code) 

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that 
the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 
90 days: Yes Ii'I No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web 
site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of 
Regulation SoT during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to 
submit and post such files). Yes 0 No Ii'I 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a 
non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," 
"accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer Ii'I Non-accelerated filer 0 Smaller reporting company 0 
(Do not check if a smaller reporting 

company) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act): Yes 0 No Ii'I 

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest 
practicable date. 

Title of Each Class 

Class A Common Stock, par value 
$0.01 per share 

Class B Common Stock, par value 
$0.01 per share 

Total Common Stock Outstanding 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 100a, May 01,2009 

Shares outstanding 
as of March 31, 

2009 

39,312,542 

6,626,334 
45,938,876 



Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01,2009 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc, 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(amounts in thousands, except per share data) 

(unaudited) 

RE!~enu_e _____ _ 
Services 

[ Systems 
Total revenue 

Direct costs ofreveriue 
Direct cost of services 
Direct cost of systems, including amortization of software 

m_..AeveloPillent costs of $56D~l!cll40JU~spectivel~L __ 
Total direct cost of revenue 

.IL 
$ 

_1I 

Three Months Ended 
March 31, 

2009 2008 

I D=rI==rJ 
3.0,624 $ 22,766 

I 39,87n I I 17,64n I 
7.0,5.01 4.0,413 

_LLnJ __ L LIL_II 
18,369 13,658 

IJ 126,88J 1 1 1 7,19111 
45,257 2.0,849 

~El.rvices gross 1Jr0fit 
Systems gross profit 

_____ . ___ ~D 12,25§ I 9,1.081 I 
12,989 1.0,456 

i- Total gross profit_ ... _ L I 125,2441 U I 19,5641J 
o eratin costs and ex enses 

Research_and developme~t-"'e"-xp-e-n-s-e---------~I-I~~4-,8=7~4!~~~~4~,=D8=81~1 
Sales and marketing expense 3,991 3,.099 
General and adminislrative expense ... _. __ - _.· ____ LLI 6,8921 LTJ 5,31 OC:I 
De reciation and amortization of ro e and e ment 1,454 1,49.0 
Amortization of acquirecliiltallQible assets 3 31 

Total operating costs and expenses 17,248 14,.032 
j::I--=-pe=-=ra::c.t"'in=-=g"'income . ________ I I JI,~~ILLJJ 5,5321 I 

~~~~f!~:~~~~E!bt discount and debtill~uancElE!Xp.'lnsEl!> I I (1 ~~ T 1~~~1 
Other income/(expense), net 179 (413) 
fu(:Ql!ie before in(:ome taxEl!>_ ::LI_LL®~Ll.LJ_4,66[J 
Provision for income taxes (3,115) (48) 
Net income ------------- _.I $ I 4,8671 $ I 4,618) I 

Net income per share-basic $ .0.11 $ .0.11 

Net income pershaccrec--d-=iI-uto-e-d.-------------- __ --'---!:!:....!........,::,~-L...-!:!:....!........,::,~..J 
. -

I $ I D.1Q $ I .0.111 I 

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic . _______ ~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Weighted a-"eragEl..sh"res outstanding-dillJted ________ ._. 

45,567 42,273 
1 1 151,228 143,7781 I 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01, 2009 



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

March 31, 
2009 

December 31, 
2008 

(unaudited) 
--~- -- ----,,� I T --'----'-1 '---1 .-------,--------,;1 I ~ssets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

~ ---Accou-nts-receivable, net of allowanceof$425 in 2009 
1$ 35,32~ I $ 38,97711 

and $285 in 2008 58,528 61,827 
Unbilled rece'~iv<Ca~bl:"es'------------~1 ~I -~~2~0~,8~2f1~I~-~--'2~1",7~9~71~1 
Inventory 3,957 2,715 

I Deferredincome taxes I I 9,7361 I ~ I 9,73ifl 
Other current assets 5,961 3,869 

r--. -. Total current assets .~. ~. _ I r--T 134,33711 I 138,92111 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

and amortization of $42,722 in 2009 and $41,268 in 
2008 

Software development costs, net of accumulated 
amortization of $7,432 in 2009 and $6,873 in 2008 

-AcquTredTntangible assets, net of accumulated . ~ 
amortization of $693 in 2009 and $656 in 2008 

L§l>iidwill . ~ 
Deferred income taxes 

l Other assets 
Total assets 

j.Oillililities,!nd stockholders' equity ~ 

I I 

I I 

525 562 
1,8Q I 1,81311 

21,344 24,309 
1,32ij I I 1,19gl 

174,506 $ 181,959 

II I II 

23,13711 $ 34,34~ I 
Current liabilitieL_~ __ ~ _______ ~~_~~~~~~~_~=~ 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses I $ 
7,292 17,243 
9,2311 I I 4,34~ I 

Accrued payroll and relat,.,.ed'"-"lia ... b,...il ... iti ... e"Os ______ _,__,-------,--~2Sc_.___,___-_,____'C~~ 
I Deferred revenue I I 

Current portion of capital lease obligations and notes 
payable 4,182 3,837 

1 __ Tot~Lcurrent liabilities _=~~:- II 43,§42fIT 59,7741 I 
Capital lease obligations and notes payable, less current 

portion ~ ~ 
Stockholders' equity: -----------I~I -~~""''-,,-~-~--'-''''''',-, 

8,537 7,913 
II II 

Class A Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 

r 
~~ -Authorized shares - 225,000,000; Issued and 

outstanding shares of 39,312,542 in 2009 and 
38,527,234 in 2008 

Class B Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 

AU .. t. ho.riz. e .. d .sh .... ares - 75,000,000; issued ana------n outstanding shares of 6,626,334 in 2009 and 
~L8J6,~~4 in 2008 

39d 38J 

6J I I I 6J I 
Additional paid-in cap~i""ta",-I ~_~~ ______ ~_~-,2",4"3,,,5~4~1 ~~_~2240",,",,5,!,59~ 
.Accumulated other comprehensive income I I I 121 I I 121 I 
Accumulated~d;-;e=fi-;c;it ~-~--------~--F=~( 1,"2;,;1"", 8ii;8",6:-) r-i==c",(,;:12",6"" 7",,5ii;3'!-.) 

Total stockholders' equity I I I 122,1271 I I I 114,2721 I 
Tcitalliabilities and stockholders' equity $ 174,506 $:::.-__ 1;..::8:..:1:..::,9:.;::5.::9 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

2 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01, 2009 



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

(unaudited) 

Class A 
Common 

Stock 

Class B 
Common 

Stock 

Additional 
Pald.fn 
Capital 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income/(loss) 

Accumulated 
Deficit Total 

~::~:~t 1, ~oo91 ~ 138J I k I 6J I k I 240,55J I ~ L d I b ul (126.75J) I k I 114,m11 
Options exercised 

for the purchase 
of 
519,867 shares 
of Glass A 
Common Stock 

ssuance of 
15,441 shares 0 

Glass A 
Common Stock 
under Employee 
Stock Purchase 
Plan ________ _ 

Stock 
compensation 
expense 

ponversion of 
250,000 shares 
of Glass B 
Common Stock 
to Glass A 
Common Slock 

Net Income for the 
three-months 
ended March 31, 
2009 

- 8f 9 

- - 966 - 966 

( -- ----

----
- I 

4,867 4,867 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, MayOl, 2009 



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(amounts in thousands) 

(unaudited) 

Three Months Ended 
March 31, 

2009 2008 

Pileratingactlvities:- -. _. ______ 1 ILL!. n 
Net income $ 4,867 $ 4,618 

_di~)s~~:~~~~~ ~~~~~~~ net income to net cash provided by/(used r I I 1_1 ... 1 r-Il 
De reciation and amortization of roerCancfe-·----· = ____ ~~~--'1.L,4~5~4;...-, 1,490 

.~mortization of acquired intangible assets LI __ C=:r7[ I·· ... ::J] [ 
Deferred tax rovision 2,965 
Non-cash stoCk compensation expense. I -I· 1··-=~96"'S:~.TI -_TI--'-"97~ 
Amortization of software development costs 560 409 

I Amortization of deferred financing fees I I L ____ 51 I _1~.ij[J 
~airment of marketab.le secu~ties 482 
I Other non-cash (income)/expense I I r· (6!)_ 14/1 

Chan es in 0 eratin assets and liabilities: 
. Accounts receivable, net ._. __ ._ I 
Un billed receivables 

[Inventory .. . ...... . 
Other current assets 

1__ Other assets 
Af.."Clunts payable and ac:~ruedi:ie",xCfP:-:e~n~se~s~·-_· ____________ _ 

!Accrued payroll and related liabilities 
Deferred revenue --- - --------------. 

1- Total net cash provided by/(used in) investing8c:tiVlTIei;------Ti"1=""""~'-IFr~~~ 
Financin activities: 

ayments on long-tenm debt and ca!litallease obligations____ I I (1 ,081~ . LH.,5.E14il I 
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options and sale of stock 2,022 115 
I Total net cash provid~d.l:lyl{used in) finanCingac'-';tl;=·v;iti"es==-===I,-i"1 =r="'''!94~11-~;==T'"L"'"(4'"".l4~J3~OO5..1 
Net increase/ decrease) in cash (3,648) 2,506 

ash and cash equivalents a"'"t t"'h"'e"b-e~gi~n_~ni~n-g-o'ft"h-e-p-e~rio-d'--- I I 38,977f I J 15~ 
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end ofthe period $ 35,329 $ 18,461 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2009 

(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts) 
(unaudited) 

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial 
information and with the instructions to Form 10-0 and Article 10 of Regulation SoX. Accordingly, 
they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting 
principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments 
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been 
included. Operating results for the three-months ended March 31, 2009 are not necessarily 
indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended December 31, 2009. These 
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our audited financial 
statements and related notes included in our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Investments in Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The marketable securities, 
which are valued at $78 at March 31, 2009, are included in other current assets and are classified 
as available-for-sale in accordance with the provision of SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain 
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities". These securities are carried at fair market value based 
on quoted market price. We had not realized or unrealized gains or losses related to these 
securities during the first quarter of 2009. In the first quarter of 2008, the Company determined that 
the losses in fair market value of some of the marketable securities held were other-than-temporary 
and wrote down the value of these securities by approximately $480, which the write-down is 
included in Other income/(expense), net. Gains or losses on securities sold will be based on the 
specific identification method. 

other Comprehensive Income/(Loss). Comprehensive income/(Ioss) includes changes in the 
equity of a business during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from 
non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income/loss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and 
losses that under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive 
income, but excluded from net income. For operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial 
statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results of operations and cash flows are 
translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and liabilities are translated at 
end-of-period exchange rates. Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary are included as 
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity. Also included 
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities that are classified as available-for-sale. 

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans: our 
Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Stock Incentive Plan") and our 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP"). We have also previously issued restricted stock to 
directors and certain key executives. We record compensation expense for all stock-based 
compensation plans using the fair value method prescribed by Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Statement No. 123, Share Based Payment, as revised ("SFAS 123(R)"). Our 
non-cash stock compensation expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, research and 
development expense, sales and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense as 
detailed in Note 2. 

Earnings per share. Basic income per common share is based upon the average number of 
shares of common stock outstanding during the period. At March 31, 2009 and 2008, stock options 
to purchase approximately 1.6 million and 5.1 million shares, respectively, were excluded from the 
computation of 

5 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

diluted net income per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. A reconciliation 
of basic to diluted weighted average common shares outstanding is as follows: 

!3aJilc:-,lveigl1ted averag~ common shares oLJtstanding 
Dilutive options outstanding 
pjiUtive\\larrants outstanding ______ _ _________ _ 
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding used in the 

calculation of diluted income 

II 
I I 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31 1 
2009 2008 

145,5671 14~"p3l1 
5,160 1,035 

4981 I 00 
51,225 43,778 

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and 
liability method of accounting for income taxes as prescribed by SFAS 109. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between financial reporting basis and tax 
basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for tax net operating loss and 
income tax credit carryforwards. These deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the 
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when such amounts are projected to 
reverse or be utilized. The realization of total deferred tax assets is contingent upon the generation 
of future taxable income in the tax jurisdictions in which the deferred tax assets are located. 
Valuation allowances are provided to reduce such deferred tax assets to amounts more likely than 
not to be ultimately realized. 

Income tax provision or benefit includes U.S. federal, state and local income taxes and is based 
on pre-tax income or loss. The interim period provision or benefit for income taxes is based upon 
the Company's estimate of its annual effective income tax rate. In determining the estimated annual 
effective income tax rate, the Company analyzes various factors, including projections of the 
Company's annual earnings and taxing jurisdictions in which the earnings will be generated, the 
impact of state and local income taxes and the ability of the Company to use income tax credits and 
net operating loss carryforwards. 

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income 
Taxes' (FIN 48) which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for 
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides 
guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting interim 
periods, disclosure and transition. If a tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not initial 
recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the financial statements. Upon the adoption of 
FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company's uncertain tax positions was a 
liability of $2,736 resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include interest and 
penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by reducing the 
value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on 
any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no 
interest or penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for three-months ended 
March 31, 2009 and 2008 or the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2009 and 2008. The 
Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as state and local tax in various jurisdictions. 
As of March 31, 2009, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back to 1999, 
due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The fair value of the Company's financial instruments 
approximates their carrying value. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, "Fair Value Measurements," which defines fair 
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. In 
February 2008, the FASB decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of 
adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are recognized or 
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis. The FASB also decided 
to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its related interpretive accounting 
pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets 
and liabilities in the first quarter of 2008 did not have an effect on the Company's results of 
operations, cash flows or financial position. The Company adopted SFAS 157 for non-financial 
assets and liabilities in the first quarter of 2009. This adoption did not have an effect on the 
Company's results of operations, cash flows or financial position. See Note 4 for the disclosures 
regarding SFAS 157. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), "Business Combinations." This standard 
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its 
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-controlling 
interest in the acquired and the goodwill acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure 
requirements which will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business 
combination. SFAS 141 (R) is effective for us for acquisitions made after December 31, 2008. This 
statement was effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of 2009 and did not have any 
impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated 
Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51" (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 
to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and 
for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It also amends certain of ARB No. 51's consolidation 
procedures for consistency with the requirements of SFAS 141 (R). This statement is effective for 
fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. 
This statement was effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of 2009 and did not 
have any impact on the Company's financial statements. 

2. Stock-Based Compensation 

Stock based compensation expense for all awards granted after December 31, 2005 is based 
on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with SFAS 123(R), "Share-Based Payments". 
Consistent with the requirements of SFAS 123(R), we recognized compensation expense net of 
estimated forfeitures over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of 
5 years. The Company estimates the fair value of each stock option award on the date of grant 
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility 
of the Company's stock. The Company estimates forfeitures based on historical experience and the 
expected term of the options granted are derived from historical data on employee exercises. The 
risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The 
Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near future. 

We also recognize non-cash stock compensation expense for restricted stock issued to 
directors and certain key executives. The restrictions expire at the end of one year for directors and 
expire in annual increments over three years for executives and are based on continued 
employment. We had 10 shares of restricted stock outstanding as of March 31,2009 and 
December 31, 2008. We expect to record future stock compensation expense of $50 as a result of 
the restricted stock grants outstanding as of March 31, 2009 that will be recognized over the 
remaining vesting period in 2009. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

The material components of our stock compensation expense are as follows: 

~toc~"olTlpensation : 
Stock 0 tions granted at fair-'v..,a..,lu,..e ____ _ 

estricted stock 
E-mployee stock purchase plan 
I Total stocl<compensali'-9'-1'l-,_-,_-"----

Three Months 

I I I 251 
16 

I I II 
$ 931 
I I 3~ I 

11 

$ 19751 I 

Non-cash stock compensation included in our operations in the accompanying Consolidated 
Statements of Operations is as follows: 

Three Months Ended March 31. 
2009 2008 

Comm. Gvmt Total Comm. Gvmt Total 

~~~~:~:~~~~::~~~~ed II I JJI,I III L IJ I I III I III I .. LI 
Direct cost of serviC'e!; $ 270 $ 121 $ 391 $ 301 $ 129 $ 430 
Direct COil! of systems---'I rl --,"1 4!J I I I 181M I I 123111 I I 4§ I I 11721 I Uilll 

Total stock compensation 
included in direct costs of 
revenue $ 315 $ 307 $ 622 $ 346 $ 301 $ 647 ---

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31, 
2009 2008 

-----O~--- -----~~ -=-:;:_=-=,_, --
!Stock compen~JiQn included inQllerating expenses:_______ I I I I rL I ,. u LI 
Researchand developm,ent expense $ 225 $ 213 
I§ales and ma!keting exp~n_s~_un_~_ ::::J_LJ7~1 I I 7111 
General and administrative expense 41 44 
I Total st()(;l<compensation included in op~r_atir1fLEl)(penses I 1$ [344/ I $ I 32~ I 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for the three-months ended 
March 31, 2009 is as follows: 

(Share amounts in thousands) 

putstanding, begilmil}lLotll'eaJ 
Granted 

1 1 

Number of 

Options 

11,67§1.1 
1,389 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

.~n j:P71 
$ 8.09 

1 

1_ r=~[cit;ed 
Forfeited 

LJ (52q) 1 1$- 1 3,7211 

Outstanding, at March 31, 2009 

Exercisable, at March 31, 2009 

~ested and expected .It) "est at March 31, 2009 . . . .. _ . 

Estimated weighted-average grant-date fair value of options 
granted during the year 

eighted-average remaining contractual life of options 
outstal1.Qingat M.~rc_h_31, 2009 

ilion-vested, begirinil'lg_oty~~r 

Forfeited 

fJested 

Exercisable, at March 31, 2009 

1 

1 

I 

L 

1 

$ 

I 

1 1 

1 1 

(119) 
] 12,42!?j I 

7,439 

[ 1.M1(j I 

4.58 

16. 7 }'E!ar~ I 
Number of 

Options 

1 5,36~ 1 

(109) 

1 1,6611 1 

7,439 

$ 4.46 

.-.~. 1 4.25\ 1 

$ 3.92 

n~ ni4.1!lj 1 

I I-n 
Weighted 
Average 

Fair 
Value 

1$ 1 2,2111 

$ 2.82 

1$ 1 2,1211 

$ 3.28 

Hon,vested, at March 31, 2009 LI 1 4,98Z\ 1 It 12.88\.1 

Exercise prices for options outstanding at March 31, 2009 ranged from $1.07 to $26.05 as 
follows (all share amounts in thousands): 

Exercise Prices 

~ 1.07-
1_ $ 2.61 
$ 2.61 -

Options 

Outstanding 

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Prices of 

Options Outstanding 

Weighted-Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life of Options 

Outstanding (Years) 

$~5.=2,-1 _~_~"6-,-,, 1,,50 $,-_~---,,3",.3,,;5~ __ ~_-,,6. 71 

f i~1I1LLL I 2,08~ I ~ .. ls.7JJL_ 4.9J II 
$ 7.82-

$1 0.4",2~~_~-,1 ... ,3",9,,;9,.;$,,-

f1~2~~05 JL-I -'-----"~ I ~ 
12,426 

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Prices of Options 

EXercisable Options Exercisable 

3,273 $ 3.33 

As of Ma'ch 31, 2009, we estimate that we will recognize $6,723 in expense for outstanding, 
unvested options over their weighted average remaining vesting period of 3.7 years, of which we 
estimate $3,199 will be recognized during the remainder of 2009. 

9 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY. 10·Q, May 01,2009 



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

In using the Black-Scholes model to calculate the fair value of our stock options, our 
assumptions were as follows: 

~x"e"ted life (in years) 
Risk-free interest rate(%) 
f,iQlEltility(% ) 

. LI 5.5 I 5.5 I 
1.7%-1.9% 2.8%-3.28% 

I I 63'1~-El4o/ilnJ...§§%-tl!%1 
Dividend yield(%) 0% 0% 

3. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information 

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $2,050 and $1,295 during the 
three-months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Interest paid totaled $188 and $329 during the three-months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. 

Alternative minimum income taxes and estimated state income taxes paid totaled $379 and $48 
during the three-months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

4. Fair Value Measurements 

SFAS 157 discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market 
prices), the income approach (present value of future income or cash flows), and the cost approach 
(cost to replace the service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). The statement utilizes a fair 
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into 
three broad levels. The following is a brief description of those three levels: 

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not 
active. 

Level 3: Observable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions. 

Our population of assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements and the necessary 
disclosures are as follow ($ in thousands): 

Fair Value 
as of 

3/31/2009 
Total 

Fair Value Measurements at 3131/2009 
Using Fair Value Hierarchy 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Y\ssets _______ 
m 

______ .1 I II I J __ "::"::LL_LL I II 
Cash and ~Elsh equivalents .,;$"-..--r'3"'5.,.,3,..20'9"r-r-,$"---""35"',,..3,,29'T---.---i$'--- $ 

__ M~~:~:~::_~:r:~~~es iLI_...L. __ "7"JLlI--e,I.....JI...".,,...,.7,,,,J I I Idrrn 
$ 35,407 $ 35,407 $ $ 

The fair value of marketable securities are based on quoted market prices from various stock 
exchanges. The Company also adopted SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities in the first 
quarter of 2009. There were no required fair value measurements for non-financial assets and 
liabilities in the first quarter of 2009 and no required additional disclosures upon adoption. 
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TeleCommunication Systems. Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

5. Segment Information 

Our two operating segments are the Commercial and Government Segments. 

Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text 
messages, location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to 
and from wireless phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides E9-1-1 services, commercial 
location-based services, inter-carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a 
hosted. or service bureau, basis. We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications 
including our Rand McNally® Traffic application. 

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network 
communication systems, including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also 
own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, resell access to satellite airtime (known as space 
segment), and provide communication systems integration, information technology services, and 
software systems and services to the U.S. Department of Defense and other government 
customers. 

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross prof~. We do not maintain 
information regarding segment assets. Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment is not 
presented. 

The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments for the three-months ended 
March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. All revenues reported below are from external customers. A 
reconciliation of segment gross profit to net income for the respective periods is also included 
below: 

Revenueu 
Services 
ISistems 

Total revenue 

Eperatlng cost,s, 
and expenses 

Direct cost of .­
services 

IDirect co, s, t, of 
_~~stems 

Three Months Ended March 31 , 
2009 2008 

Comm. Gvmt Total Comm. GYmt Total 

[1 I uUrr=111 I ILL 11LLL __ LLll ____ II 
$ 17,807 $ 12,817 $ 30,624 $ 15,536 $ 7,230 $ 22,766 

II 'I 7,76~ II I 32,114111 I 39,81'7111 110,70§ II I 6,941111 1 17,64711 
25,570 44,931 70,501 26,242 14,171 40,413 

II J III I III I III 1m/Lin] III I II 

~8~,1~9~ITT-,~10~,~17~8, ",-1~8~,3~6;9,,---,~7~,9~5;9,,-,~5,~69~9TT,,_1~3~,6~5~8 

II 11,88J II 125,00dll I 26,88J II I 2,04d II I 5,14~ [I I 7,19111 

Total direct cost"'s----r-F=p,!,!10"",0""7',;9h_l~~35"",,!,,17~8h_FC'4;:5"',~25~7h_F~I~0c.;,0:::095c.-c=T=1""0c.;,8~4c:;4,,r=r,,;2;::Oo.;,8;.:499n 
Pross JlI'ofit I I I __ LI 1 I I 1 I J I I I=r:JJ~~~1 I I _1 ___ 1 1 
serviCes gross profit 9,616 2,63912,255 7,577 1,531 9,108 
ISYst!lmsgross~pO:r::iofiii-,t 'I 'I ---'-1 -:i5~,8"'7~~'II I 7,1141 J I 1~12i':,9~8"'!j--'I'I---'I----i;8"',6:;';6(j!.,,'1 'I 'I----:il "', 7'*9§.ITJ 'I '1--;1~0"',4~5§inl 

Total gross profit $ 15,491 $ 9,753 $ 25,244 $ 16,237 $ 3,327 $ 19,564 

11 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01, 2009 



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

Three Months Ended 
March 31, 

2009 2008 

rrotal segment gross profit . _____________ J]~LJ~24~LL~ i111,564j I 
Research and development expense (4.874) (4.08~ I 

U~e~l3.nd marketing eX[)ElnSe ____ _ nnJJ1.<:3,9_915 I [ [ (30 09 
General and administrative expense (6,89~.L (5,31!!l 

I Depreciation and amortization of [)roperty and eglJiQiiiElDL. [ .1 I (1A§AILL.L_111,49OOI 

[~Te~:~~~~~:~~:CqUired_inta:gible.as-s .. e ... ts __ -------__ -_TU-.--.-I' __ -_'(1.)'(~~~~.--.---,I-,---'(3~(~~.~,f;-,1 
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance ex e,..n .. s,..e ... s __ ---,--.--,-----c~(5';f}__, ... 1 (124) 
Other income/CE!x\l.ense), net I Ll --,--=--=1:..:7-?[. L. (41~J 

Income before income taxes 7,982 4,666 
f'rovlsLonfQrincome taxes __ _____ ___ I I I (3.115bT I (400 [ 
Net income 

6. Inventory 

~_omponEmt parts 
Finished goods 

$ 4,867 $ 4,618 

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, 
2009 2008 

I [$T3,197[ I $ [1M] 
760 952 

I T()tal inventoryA[)EiriQd end .. _. ______ n 11 l1MZI [_~ j2,715[ I 

7. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

March 31, 2009 

Accumulated 
Amortization Ne. 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount 

December 31, 2008 

Accumulated 
Amortization Net 

y\cquired intangible ass ... ~ LL_t .. _11 L 1 ·11 I ILL I mll1n.! III n 
~C;;;:us'itoo:m:o:e:;.rc":l"iisti'is==:---.i$"----,----ii:60ii'6r- $ 550 $ 56 $ 
L Trademar1<s & Patents 11_-'_61I:u:.'::"_Ll~ II I 46~ II 
Software development 

costs, including acquired 

606 $ 521 $ 85 
61Z 1.1 I 13~ II 14:t~J 

~re~c~h;no;lo~g~y ____ -.~~~9~,7~89 1~==~7~,4~3~3~FF.2~,3~5~6~~~~9,~64~6~~==F6~,8~7~3~~~2,~77~3~ 
Total

un 
_____ LiLL11,OO7Jl ~ I 8,12~ I ~ 12,8811 L~ J 10,8tl4]J~ .1 7,52~ I ~ I 3,33~ I 

Estimated future amortization ex ense: 
Nin&-I11Qf!th_~ __ ~Qj_I1A_QeceITI~~! _31, 2009 
Yearendin December31,2010 

ear ending December J,1, 2011 
Year ending December 31, 201i 
r>'earending December 31, 2013 
Thereafter 

.. ________ . ___ JLr~-TJ I 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01, 2009 

-

I ~ 11,27~JJ 
$ 814 

I ~I 25~ II 
$ 108 

.I~l 10il II 
$ 317 

I I ~ I 2,88111L_I ___ 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been 
capitalized. Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and 
remaining useful lives of the respective assets. 

8. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers 

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist 
primarily of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Accounts receivable are generally due 
within thirty days and no collateral is required. We maintain allowances for potential credit losses 
and historically such losses have been within our expectations. 

The following tables summarize revenue and accounts receivable concentrations from our 
significant customers: 

Customer 

U.S. Government 
Customer A 

Customer 

U.S. Government 
Customer A 

Segment 

Government 
Commercial 

Segment 

Government 
Commercial 

9. Lines of Credit and Financing Arrangements 

% of Total Revenue For the Three 
Months Ended 

2009 
March 31. 

48% 
20% 

2008 

24% 
35% 

As of March 31. 2009 
Accounts Unbilled 

Receivable 

40% 
35% 

Receivables 

56% 
10% 

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 
2007, we amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrowing. 
Under the amended agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the 
borrowing rate decreased from prime plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per 
annum at March 31, 2009. Our maximum borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000. 
Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based principally on accounts receivable levels and 
a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of credit agreement. The line of credit 
available is reduced by the amounts of letters of credit outstanding which totaled $775 at March 31, 
2009. As of March 31, 2009, we had no borrowings outstanding under the line of credit and we had 
approximately $19,700 of unused borrowing availability under this line. 

In June 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of our March 2006 secured notes with a with a five year 
note payable to our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new note is the bank's prime rate 
plus 0.25% per annum, (3.5% at March 31, 2009) and the note is repayable in equal monthly 
installments of $167 plus interest. 

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain 
a minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio as well as other restrictive covenants 
including, among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed 
thresholds, undertake actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence 
of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance 
of a minimum tangible net worth. The agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires 
(i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or financial condition of the Company 
occur, or (ii) no material impairment of 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

the prospect of repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material 
impairment of value or priority of the lenders security interests in the collateral of the bank credit 
agreement. As of March 31, 2009, we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of 
credit and we believe that the Company will continue to comply with these covenants. If our 
performance does not result in compliance with any of these restrictive covenants, we would seek 
to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no assurance that the bank would 
not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including declaring all outstanding 
debt due and payable. 

In December 2006, we borrowed $5,000 under 3-year notes secured by accounts receivable of 
one customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we prepaid this debt in full and modified the terms of the 
note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is 
equal to $1,287 at March 31, 2009 less $150 per month until the maturity date of December 28, 
2009. The borrowing rate is the London InterBank Offered Rate (LiBOR) plus 500 basis points. As 
of March 31, 2009, the Company has not borrowed against this line. 

As of March 31, 2009 we had approximately $21,000 of unused borrowing availability under 
available lines of credit. 

10. Income taxes 

The provision for income taxes totaled $3,115 for the three-months ended March 31, 2009, as 
compared to only the alternative minimum tax of $48 being recorded for the three months ended 
March 31, 2008. Prior to December 31, 2008, the Company had recorded a full valuation allowance 
for deferred tax assets as a result of uncertainty regarding the ability to fully realize the net 
operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2008, based on 
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income, the Company determined that it 
is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets will be realized, and reversed the valuation 
allowance. 

There were no significant changes to unrecognized tax benefits during the three-months ended 
March 31, 2009. We do not anticipate a significant change to the total amount of unrecognized tax 
benefits within the next twelve months. 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company has been notified that some customers may seek indemnification under its 
contractual arrangements with those customers for costs associated with defending lawsuits 
alleging infringement of certain patents through the use of our products and services in combination 
with the use of products and services of multiple other vendors. The Company will continue to 
negotiate with these customers in good faith because the Company believes its technology does 
not infringe on the cited patents and due to specific clauses within the customer contractual 
arrangements that mayor may not give rise to an indemnification obligation. Although the Company 
cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters, we do not expect the resolutions will have a 
material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was fited against us, certain of our 
current officers and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial 
public offering (the "Underwriters"): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United 
States District Court for the Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The 
plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit 
filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common Stock during the period August 8, 2000 
through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters agreed to allocate our 
Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers in 
exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to 
make additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined 
prices. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 

The plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, 
and that the underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated 
thereunder. The claims against us of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs 
having the right to re-plead. On February 15, 2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily 
approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer defendants and their insurers, 
provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order set forth in the 
settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order, 
and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the settlement. On 
December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the District 
Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the 
settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and 
Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's 
decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied plaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified that 
the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the 
District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On November 13, 2007, the issuer 
defendants in certain designated "focus cases" filed a motion to dismiss the second consolidated 
amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District 
Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended 
complaints in the "focus cases." On April 2, 2009, the plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary 
approval of a new proposed settlement between plaintiffs, the underwriter defendants, the issuer 
defendants and the insurers for the issuer defendants. We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit 
until the matter is resolved. We have purchased a Directors and Officers insurance policy which we 
believe should cover any potential liability that may result from these claims, but can provide no 
assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be covered by the insurance. No 
reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have been named in 
nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the 
plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us. . 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Virginia against Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan 
Americas for patent infringement related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short 
Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only Experience ("the '748 patent"), issued to the 
Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan Americas, and, during the second 
quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the claims of our 
patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment of damages for past infringement and a 
post verdict 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the 
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied 
Sybase 365's post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a 
permanent injunction prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction 
pending the outcome of any appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by 
$2.2 million and vacated the jury finding of willful infringement. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 
365 filed a request for reexamination of the '748 patent claiming that the patent is invalid. In the 
second quarter of 2008, the United States Patent and Trademark Office granted the request and 
began the requested reexamination of the '748 patent. There can be no assurances to what extent 
the matter will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could become subject to 
counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. On March 31, 2009, the district 
court entered final judgment on these matters that includes an approximately $12 million damages 
award and the post verdict 12% royalty. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal the final judgment 
of the district court to U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. To date, the Company has not 
received or recorded any revenue or income amounts related to this jury award. 

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other 
materialleg~'1 proceedings. However, we may from time to time become party to various legal 
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. 
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations 

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations should 
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements. related notes, and other detailed 
information included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2009 (this "Form 1 O-Q"). This Form 1 O-Q contains certain forward-looking statements 
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. as amended, and Section 21E of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. as amended. Forward-looking statements are statements 
other than historical information or statements of current condition. We generally identify 
forward-looking statements by the use of terms such as "believe", "intend", "expect". "may", 
"should". "plan". "project". "contemplate", "anticipate", or other similar statements. Examples of 
forward looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include. but are not limited to 
statements: (a) regarding our belief that our technology does not infringe the patents related to 
customer indemnification requests; (b) that we may realize revenue as a result of infringement 
claims that we make in enforcing patents; (c) that the WWSS contract vehicle is expected to 
continue to contribute significant government systems sales growth through 2011; (d) as to the 
sufficiency of our capital resources to meet our anticipated working capital and capital expenditures 
for atleastlhe next twelve months. (e) that we expect to realize approximately $115.5 million of 
backlog in the next twelve months. (I) that we believe that capitalized software development costs 
will be recoverable from future gross profits (g) regarding our belief that we were in compliance with 
our loan covenants and that we believe that we will continue to comply with these covenants, 
(h) regarding our expectations with regard to income tax assumptions and future stock 
compensation expenses and (i) indicating our insurance policies should cover all of the costs of the 
claims in the IPO laddering class action lawsuit. 

These forward-looking statements relate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future 
operations. In light of the risks and uncertainties inherent in all such projected operational matters, 
the inclusion of forward-looking statements in this report should not be regarded as a representation 
by us or any other person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or that any of our operating 
expectations will be realized. Our actual financial results realized could differ materially from the 
statements made herein, depending in particular upon the risks and uncertainties described in our 
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These include without limitation risks and 
uncertainties relating to our financial results and our ability to (i) reach and sustain profitability, 
(ii) continue to rely on our customers and other third parties to provide additional products and 
services that create a demand for our products and services, (iii) conduct our business in foreign 
countries, (iv) adapt and integrate new technologies into our products. (v) expand our sales and 
business offerings in the wireless communications industry. (vi) develop software without any errors 
or defects. (vii) have sufficient capital resources to fund the Company's operations. (viii) protect our 
intellectual property rights, (ix) implement our sales and marketing strategy, and (x) successfully 
integrate the assets and personnel obtained in our acquisitions. These factors should not be 
considered exhaustive; we undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future 
revisions we may make to forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the 
date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue 
reliance on these forward-looking statements. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
addresses our consolidated financial statements. which have been prepared in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information. The preparation of 
these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis. 
management evaluates its estimates and judgments. Management bases its estimates and 
judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. the results of which form the 
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basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions. We have identified our most critical accounting policies and estimates to 
be those related to the following: 

- Revenue recognition, 
- Stock compensation expense, and 
- Income taxes. 

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial 
statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 1 O-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 (the "2008 Form 10-K"). See Note 1 to the unaudited interim consolidated 
financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 1 0-0 for a list of the standards implemented 
for the three months ended March 31, 2009. 

Overview 

Our business is reported across two market segments: (i) the Commercial Segment, which 
consists principally of enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones, location 
application software, our E9-1-1 application and other hosted services, and (ii) the Government 
Segment, which includes the design, development and deployment of information processing and 
communication systems and related services to government agencies. 

This "Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations" provides information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear 
understanding of our financial statements and results of operations. You should read this "Item 2. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" together 
with Item 1A "Risk Factors" and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations" in our 2008 Form 10-K as well as the unaudited interim 
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto located elsewhere in this Form 10-0. 

Indicators of Our Financial and Operating Performance 

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of key performance indicators in order to 
manage our business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators 
include: 

Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services 
including recurring monthly service and subscriber fees, maintenance fees, software licenses 
and related service fees for the design, development, and deployment of software and 
communication systems, and products and services derived from the delivery of information 
processing and communication systems to governmental agencies. 

Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash 
costs. The major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, 
third-party hardware and software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash 
stock-based compensation, and overhead expenses. The costs of hardware and third-party 
software are primarily associated with the delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to 
period as a result of the relative volume, mix of projects, level of service support required and 
the complexity of customized products and services delivered. Amortization of software 
development costs, including acquired technology, is associated with the recognition of 
systems revenue from our Commercial Segment. 

Operating expenses. Our operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, 
professional fees, facility costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as 
well as certain non-cash expenses such as non-cash stock compensation expense, 
depreciation and amortization of property and equipment, and amortization of acquired 
intangible assets. 
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Liquidity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. 
Important other sources of our liquidity are our leases secured for the purchase of equipment 
and potential borrowings under our credit lines. 

Balance sheet. We view cash, working capital, and accounts receivable balances and days 
revenue in receivables outstanding as important indicators of our financial health. 

Results of Operations 

Revenue and Cost of Revenue 

The following discussion addresses the revenue, direct cost of revenue, and gross profit for our 
two business segments: 

Commercial Segment: 

Three Months 
Ended March 31. 2009 vs. 2008 

($ In millions) 2009 2008 $ % 

Services revenue I J 117,811 $]15.~ I. JL~jL I LL_fi'&J 
Systems revenue 7.8 10.7 ~ (27)% 
Img()rT1rn~r~ial§ElgrT1entrevenue u_ UTI J25.§1 I 126.21 I I (M) I I I (21)%1 
Direct cost of services revenue 8.2 7.9 0.3 4% 
pirectco~t of systems revenue _____ ILLI -,--::",1.",!l_U 2.(LJ I (0.1p] IJj~'Yol 

Commercial Segment cost of revenue 10.1 9.9 0.2 2% 
l$~rvicesgr()~!S.JJro!it I I I 9.~ I I 7.~ I I T2.qTl I 2~1o I 
Systems gross profit ,-"",,~5,=:' 9~-'--iiC"~8:i"'i;7-'---iiffi(~2'ii' 8~) -.--,--,-;3;,2°;;,%;, 
L. Commercial Segment gross (lrofit_1 _. I $ I 15.§ Us 116.~ $1 (0.00 L L_Uill:%J 

Segment gross profit as a percent of revenue 61% 62% 

1 See discussion of segment reporting in Note 5 to the accompanying unaudited consolidated 
financial statements 

Commercial Services Revenue, Cost of Revenue. and Gross Profit: 

Commercial services revenue increased 15% for the three-months ended March 31, 2009 
versus the comparable period of 2008. 

Our hosted offerings include our E9-1-1 service for wireless and Voice over Internet Protocol 
(VoIP) E9-1-1 service providers, hosted Position Determining Entity (POE) service, and hosted 
Location Based Service (LBS) applications. Revenue from these offerings primarily consists of 
monthly recurring service fees and is recognized in the month earned. E9-1-1, POE, VolP and 
hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units served during the period, such as the number of 
customer cell sites served, the number of connections to Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs), 
or the number of customer subscribers served. Subscriber service revenue is generated by client 
software applications for wireless subscribers such as Rand McNally® Traffic. Maintenance fees on 
our systems and software licenses are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the 
maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue. Custom 
software development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and 
materials or fixed-fee contracts. 

Commercial services revenue in the first quarter of 2009 was up $2.3 million or 15% higher than 
in the first quarter of 2008 from increased service connection deployments of our E9-1-1 services 
for cellular and VolP service providers, an increase in maintenance revenue, and an increase in the 
number of carriers and carrier billable units served. 
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The direct cost of commercial services revenue consists primarily of compensation and 
benefits, network access, data feed and circuit costs, and equipment and software maintenance, 
The direct costs of maintenance revenue consist primarily of compensation and benefits expense. 
For the three-months ended March 31, 2009, the direct cost of commercial services revenue 
increased 4% as compared to the first quarter of 2008, based on the increase in revenue. We 
incurred an increase in labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts responding to 
customer requests and deployment requirements for VoIP. The cost of circuit and other data access 
costs accounted for approximately 13% of the total direct costs of our commercial service revenues 
for each of the three-month period ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. 

Commercial services gross profit which was 54% and 49% for the three-months ended 
March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, increased based on improved operating efficiencies 
enabling higher revenue with only nominal increases in labor, fringe and contractor costs. 

Commercial Systems Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit: 

We sell communications systems incorporating our licensed software for enhanced services, 
including text messaging and location-based services, to wireless carriers. These systems are 
designed to incorporate our licensed software. We design our software to ensure that it is compliant 
with all applicable standards. Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its 
volume of usage in our customers' networks. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage increase, the 
carrier must purchase additional capacity under its license agreement and we receive addilional 
revenue. We may also realize license revenue as a result of infringement claims that we make in 
enforcing our patents. 

Commercial systems revenue decreased 27% for the three-months ended March 31, 2009 
versus the comparable period of 2008 due mainly to decreased sales of licensed text messaging 
software. A major carrier customer made a larger license purchase for increased capacity in the first 
quarter of 2008 than in the first quarter of 2009. Other than the difference in these license 
purchases, commercial systems revenues were about the same in the first quarters of 2009 and 
2008. 

The direct cost of our commercial systems consists primarily of compensation, benefits, 
purchased equipment, third-party hardware and software, travel expenses, consulting fees as well 
as the amortization of both acquired and capitalized software development costs for all reported 
periods. The direct cost of the license component of systems is normally very low, and the gross 
profit very high since the software development efforts were expensed in prior periods. In the first 
quarter of 2009, direct costs of systems consisted primarily of compensation, benefits, third-party 
hardware and software, and $0.6 million of amortization of software development costs. 

Our commercial systems gross profit was $5.9 million in the three-months ended March 31, 
2009 versus $8.7 million in the comparable period of 2008. The decrease in gross margin is due 
principally to the larger license sale in the first quarter of 2008. Commercial systems gross profit 
was approximately 76% and 81 % of revenue March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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Government Segment: 

Three Months 
Ended March 31 1 

($ In millions) 

~ervices revenue 
Systems revenue 
I Govemment Segment rElllenue 
Direct cost of services revenue 
I:)irect ~os'-()f~y§lerns revenue 

2009 

I 1$ 112.~ 
32.1 

11 1 44.g 
10.2 

I 1 1 25.g 

2008 

I 1$1 n 
6.9 

mL 114.~ 
5.7 

1 5.11 
35.2 10.8 

I I I 2.~ I I 1.51 
Government Segment cost of revenue 

~ervices gross profit - ""-' .... -----..... --------,-pr"i~___,___i=;'~:;s 
7.1 

I ~I 9.~ 
Systems gross profit 
~Governme~n~t~s~e~gm~e~nt~g-r-o-ss-.-p-ro·fi~~'~_-~_-_-.. ~-_-__ -~~-,~~~~ 

Segment gross profit as a percent of revenue 22% 

1.8 

r ~I 3.~ 
23% 

2009 vs. 2008 

$ % 

1$1 5.51 I I I 7~1o I 
25.2 365% 

J ~~ 1 130.~ L 1216/'10 I 
4.5 79% 

J 119.~ I 39Q% I 
22.4 226% 

I I I 1.1111 r 73/'1o I 
5.3 294% 

I ~I 6.~ I I I 194/'1o I 

1 See discussion of segment reporting in Note 5 to the accompanying unaudited consolidated 
financial statements 

For the three-months ended March 31. 2009. Government Segment revenue increased 216% 
reflecting increases in both services and systems revenue. During the third quarter of 2006, TCS 
was one of six vendors selected by the U.S. Army to provide secure satellite services and systems 
under a five year contract vehicle (the "WWSS"), with a possible maximum value of up to $5 billion 
for the six vendors. The WWSS contract vehicle is expected to continue to contribute significant 
government systems sales growth through 2011. The Company's Government Segment has been 
awarded participation as a prime or sub-contractor to provide similar satellite-based technology 
under several other contract vehicles. The total potential value of all WWSS awards received to 
date is approximately $370 million of which $148 million has been funded. We currently expect to 
fulfill the award potential by the end of 2011. 

Government Services Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit: 

Government services revenue primarily consists of communications engineering, program 
management, help desk outsource, network design, and management for government agencies. 
Our Government Segment also operates teleport facilities for data connectivity via satellite including 
resale of satellite airtime. Services revenue increased 75% for the three-months ended March 31, 
2009 compared to the three-months ended March 31, 2008 as a result of new and expanded-scope 
contracts for professional services, satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and 
maintenance and field support associated with our systems sales. Direct cost of government 
services revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel expenses incurred in delivering 
these services, as well as satellite space segment purchased for resale. These costs increased as 
a result of the increased volume of services. 

Our gross profit from government services increased to $2.6 million in the first quarter of 2009 
versus $1.5 million in the first quarter of 2008, as a result of increased volume of services. 

Government Systems Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit: 

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and 
deployment of information processing and communication systems, primarily deployable 
satellite-based communications systems, and integration of those systems into customer networks. 
These are largely variations on our SwiftLink® product line, which are lightweight, secure, 
deployable'communications systems, sold to units of the U.S. Department of Defense, and other 
agencies. 
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Systems sales in our Government Segment more than tripled to $32.1 million in the first quarter 
of 2009 compared to $6.9 million for the three-months ended March 31, 2008. This increase 
represents higher unit sales volume of our SwiftLink® and deployable communication systems 
resulting from competitive wins, under the VVlNSS 5-year contract vehicle. 

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of costs related to purchased system 
components, compensation, benefits, travel, and the costs of third-party contractors that we 
engage. These costs have increased as a direct result of the increase in volume. These equipment 
and third-party costs are variable for our various types of products, and margins may fluctuate 
between periods based on pricing and product mixes. 

Our government systems gross profit was $7.1 million in the first quarter of 2009, up from 
$1.8 million in the comparable period of 2008 due mainly to increased sales volume. 

Revenue Backlog 

As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, we had unfilled orders or backlog as follows: 

($ in millions) 

K:ommercial Segment 
Government Segment 

Three Months 
Ended March 31! 

2009 2008 

_u __ LIL 87J~1 
68.9 

_1 IS 1 156.1L 

$ 91.1 

J IS 1 89.~ 1 
34.9 

L .!P 1 124.1j 1 

$ 98.6 

2009 VS. 2008 

$ % 

U.l:0101 .1 1 (2jj% 1 
34.0 97% 

lSI 31.[11 I 2(f1o I I T()tillfuntie_dul:Q.ntrSj<:\J>acklog 

Commercial Segment 
K3bvemment Segmeiit-- __ LI 1323.41 1 n126.411 

$ (7.5) {~% I 
1 1197.[ Ifs *' 

Total backlog of orders and commitments, 
including customer options $ 414.5 $ 225.0 $ 189.5 84% 

~xRected to be realized within next 12 months I IS 1115.51 I U 78.(j I :11 37.~ I 

Funded contract backlog on March 31, 2009 was approximately $156.7 million, of which the 
Company expects to recognize approximately $115.5 million in the next twelve months. Total 
backlog was approximately $414.5 million at the end of the first quarter of 2009. Funded contract 
backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by our customers 
(mainly federal agencies), and for our hosted services is computed by multiplying the most recent 
month's recurring revenue times the remaining months under existing long-term agreements, which 
we believe is the best available information for anticipating revenue under those agreements. Total 
backlog, as is typically measured by government contractors, includes orders covering optional 
periods of service and/or deliverables for which budgetary funding may not yet have been 
approved. Company backlog at any given time may be affected by a number of factors, including 
the availability of funding, contracts being renewed or new contracts being signed before existing 
contracts are completed. Some of our backlog could be canceled for causes such as late delivery, 
poor performance and other factors. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to period is 
not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue. 

Operating Expenses 

Research and development expense: 

($ in millions) 

Research and development expense 
Percent of total revenue 

Source: TELECOMMUNiCATiON SY, 10-Q, May 01, 2009 
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Three Months 
Ended 

March 31, 

2009 2008 

$ 4.9 
7% 

$ 4.1 
10% 

2009 VS. 2008 

$ % 

$ 0.8 20% 



Our research and development expense consists primarily of compensation, benefits, travel 
costs, and a proportionate share of facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing 
software products are expensed prior to establishing technological feasibility. Technological 
feasibility is established for our software products when a detailed program design is completed. 
We incur research and development costs to enhance existing packaged software products as well 
as to create new software products, including software hosted in our network operations center. 
These costs primarily include compensation and benefits as well as costs associated with using 
third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are incurred unless 
technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the capitalized costs will be 
recoverable. 

The expenses we incur relate mainly to software applications which are being marketed to new 
and existing customers on a global basis. Throughout the three-months ended March 31, 2009 and 
2008, research and development was primarily focused on cellular and hosted location-based 
applications, including Voice over IP E9-1-1 , enhancements to our hosted location-based service 
platform, and wireless location-based service applications. 

For the three-months ended March 31, 2009, we capitalized $0.1 million of research and 
development costs for certain software projects in accordance with the above policy versus 
$0.2 million for the comparable quarter in 2008. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based 
software. These costs will be amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line 
method over the product's estimated useful life, not longer than three years. Amortization is also 
computed using the ratio that current revenue for the product bears to the total of current and 
anticipated future revenue for that product (the revenue curve method). If this revenue curve 
method results in amortization greater than the amount computed using the straight-line method, 
amortization is recorded at that greater amount. We believe that these capitalized costs will be 
recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products. 

Research and development expenses increased 20% for the three-months ended March 31, 
2009 versus the comparable period of 2008 primarily as a result of increased employee 
compensation associated with software development work. 

Sales and marketing expense: 

($ in millions) 

Sales and marketing expense 
Percent of total revenue 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31. 

2009 

$ 4.0 
6% 

2008 

$ 3.1 
8% 

2009 vs. 2008 

$ % 

$ 0.9 29% 

Our sales and marketing expenses include compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, 
travel costs, advertising and public relations costs as well as a proportionate share of facility-related 
costs which are expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements 
and attending and sponsoring industry conferences. We sell our software products and services 
through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. We have also historically leveraged 
our relationship with original equipment manufacturers to market our software products to wireless 
carrier customers. We sell our products and services to agencies and departments of the 
U.S. Government primarily through direct sales professionals. Sales and marketing costs increased 
$0.9 million for the three-months period ended March 31, 2009 versus the comparable period of 
2008 due to increases in sales personnel and variable compensation. 
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General and administrative expense: 

($ In millions) 

General and administrative expense 
Percent of total revenue 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31. 

2009 2008 

$ 6.9 
10% 

$ 5.3 
13% 

2009 VS. 2008 

$ % 

$ 1.6 30% 

General and administrative expense consists primarily of compensation costs and other costs 
associated with management, finance, human resources and internal infonmation systems. These 
costs include compensation, benefits, professional fees, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, 
utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as incurred. The $1.6 million increase in the 
first quarter of 2009 was due to increase in compensation costs, including a $1.2 million accrual for 
variable compensation. 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment: 

($ in millions) 

Depreciation and amortization of property and 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31. 

2009 2008 

equipment $ 1.5 $ 1.5 

$ 4B.O 
Average gross cost of property and equipment during 

the period $ 54.6 

2009 VS. 2008 

$ % 

$ 

$ 6.6 14% 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs 
associated with our investment in computers, telephone equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, 
and leasehold improvements. We compute depreciation and amortization using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful life of our assets 
generally ranges from 5 years for furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to 3 to 4 years for 
most other types of assets including computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles. 

Amortization of acquired intangible assets: 

($ In millions) 

Amortization of acquired intangible assets 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31 

2009 2008 

$ 0.1 $ 0.1 

2009 VS. 2008 

_$­

$-

The amortization of acquired intangible assets relates to the assets acquired from Kivera, Inc. in 
2004, which are being amortized over their useful lives of between five and nineteen years using 
the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve method. 

Interest expense: 

($ In millions) 

,nterest expense incurred on notes payable 
Interest ex ense incurred on ca itallease obli 
mortizCltionof deferred financing fees 

Total interest and financing expense 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31 

2009 2008 

$ 0.2 $ 

2009 vs. 2008 

$ % 

.~Lm:~I .. I. 

$ 

Interest expense is incurred under notes payable, a line of credit, and capital lease obligations. 
Interest on our notes payable is primarily at stated interest rates at the bank's prime rate plus 0.25% 
per annum (3.5% at March 31, 2009) and interest on line of credit borrowing is at the bank's prime 
rate, which was 3.25% per annum as of March 31, 2009. 
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On June 25, 2007, we refinanced our $1 0 million long term debt with a new five year note 
payable to our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new note was the bank's prime rate 
plus 0.25% per annum, (3.5% at March 31, 2009) and the note is repayable in equal monthly 
installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 
secured notes. 

Our bank line of credit expires in June 2010, and our maximum line of credit is $22 million. 
Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based principally on the accounts receivable levels 
and working capital ratio, each as defined in the line of credit agreement. Our potential borrowing 
under the amended line of credit agreement is also reduced by the amount of lellers of credit 
outstanding which totaled about $0.8 million at March 31, 2009. There were no borrowings under 
our bank line of credit at March 31, 2009. 

In December 2006, we borrowed $5 million from Tatonka Capital under a 3 year note secured 
by the accounts receivable of one customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid this debt in full and 
modified the terms of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum 
indebtedness of the line is equal to the current maximum debt of $3.2 million ($1.3 million at 
March 31, 2009) less $0.2 million per month for the number of full months that have expired since 
the effective date. The maturity date of the line of credit is December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate 
is the London InterBank Offered Rate (LiBOR) plus 500 basis points. The Company has not 
borrowed against this Tatonka line. 

Cash interest expense on notes payable in the first quarter of 2009 was lower than in the first 
quarter of 2008 because the average effective borrowing rate was lower and term debt balances 
were lower. The interest cost of capital lease financings was about the same in both periods. 

Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front expenditures at the time of contracting for notes 
payable and our revolving line of credit facility, which are being amortized over the term of the note 
or the life of the facility. The higher 2008 amortization reflects fees to borrow the 2006 Notes. 

Our total interest and financing expense decreased for the three-months ended March 31, 2009 
versus the comparable period of 2008 primarily as a result of retiring our incremental March 2006 
and December 2006 borrowings. 

Of her income/(expense), nef: 

Other income/(expense), net consists primarily of interest earned on investment accounts, 
foreign currency translation/transaction gain or loss, which is dependent on international 
fluctuations in exchange rates. The other components of other income/(expense), net typically 
remain comparable between periods. 

Income faxes: 

Income tax expense was $3.1 million for the first quarter of 2009 against pre-tax income 
representing an effective tax rate of approximately 39%. In the first quarter of 2008, which was prior 
to the 2008 year-end reversal of the deferred tax asset (benefit) valuation allowance, we recorded a 
tax provision for $0.1 million for alternative minimum taxes. 

Nefincome: 

($ In millions) 

Net income 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31, 

2009 2008 

$ 4.9 $ 4.6 

2009 VS. 2008 

$ ~ 

$ 0.3 7% 

Net income increased for the three-months ended March 31, 2009 versus the comparable 
period of 2008 due primarily to increased revenue and gross profit and other factors discussed 
above. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

($ In millions) 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31, 

2009 2008 

_~~(~:e~~~taSh equ:ale:ts prov~~e~ ___ ILLJ1Ltullll 
Income 

[ Non-<:ash charges 
Deferred income tax rovision 
Net changes in working capital including 

changes in other assets 
" "gperatin activities I Pu~~~~~~~~rr~~o~~~_a:d~~~pment," netof 

Ca italized software develo ment costs 
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease 

payl!lents _____________ "" 

2009 vs. 2008 

$ % 

Other financing activities 
Net increaSe/(deCre"'a""s'-e )CCiCCn-CcccascohC----,[-il$iCT[ ~'i:§.-,---~=ii''ii,,--iiCT'~~'---'-r~ 

Days revenue in receivables, including un billed 
receivables 101 81 

Caoital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures 
primarily using cash generated by our operations, as well as the capital leases to fund fixed asset 
purchases. 

Sources and uses of cash: The Company's cash and cash equivalents balance was 
approximately $35.3 million at March 31, 2009, a $16.8 million increase from $18.5 million at 
March 31, 2008. 

Operations: Cash used by operations was $4.6 million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to 
cash generated by operations of $7.6 million in 2008. This change is primarily due to a $3.0 million 
non-cash increase in deferred income taxes, a decrease in accounts payable relating to the timing 
of vendor payments, and a decrease in accrued payroll and related liabilities due to the timing of 
payments. An increase in days revenue in receivables reflects administrative delays in customer 
payments; payment of more than $6 million of mostly past-due receivables from a large commercial 
customer was received in the first week of April. 

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions, net of cash acquired were approximately $0.1 million 
for the first quarter of 2009, due to the timing of funding for purchases. Cash used for fixed asset 
additions for three-months ended March 31, 2008 was $0.4 million. Also, investments were made in 
development of carrier software for resale which had reached the stage of development calling for 
capitalization, in the amounts approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three-months 
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Financing activities: We have a $22 million revolving credit line with our principal bank through 
June 2010 with borrowing available at the bank's prime rate plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate, 
which was 3.25% per annum at March 31, 2009. Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount 
based principally on the accounts receivable levels and working capital ratio, each as defined in the 
line of credit agreement. The line of credit available is also reduced by the amount of leiters of 
credit outstanding, which was $0.8 million at March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, we had no 
borrowings outstanding under our bank line of credit and had approximately $19.7 million of unused 
borrowing availability under the line. 

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10 million of secured notes with a five year bank term loan. 
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was prime plus 0.25% per annum (3.5% at March 31, 
2009) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. 
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Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a 
minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants 
including, among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed 
thresholds, undertake actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence 
of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum 
tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires 
(i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or financial condition of the Company to 
occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of the borrowings 
under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders security 
interests in the collateral of the agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with 
any of our restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but 
there can be no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its 
agreement with us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of March 31, 2009, 
we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and 
we believe that the Company will continue to comply with these covenants. 

On December 28, 2006, we issued a $5 million note for a term of three years, secured by 
accounts receivable of one customer to Tatonka Capital. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid the 
term loan in full, and modified the terms of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit 
agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is equal to $1.3 million at March 31, 2009 less 
$0.2 million per month through December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is London InterBank 
Offered Rate (UBOR) plus 500 basis points. As of March 31, 2009, we had no borrowings 
outstanding and $1.3 million in unused borrowing availability under the line. 

We currently believe that we have sufficient capital resources with cash generated from 
operations as well as cash on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working 
capital, and capital expenditure and debt service needs for the next twelve months. We have 
borrowing capacity available to us in the form of capital leases as well as a line of credit 
arrangement with our principal bank which expires in June 2010. We may also consider raising 
capital in the public markets as a means to meet our capital needs and to invest in our business. 
Although we may need to return to the capital markets, establish new credit facilities or raise capital 
in private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements, we can offer no assurances that 
we will be able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at all. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

As of March 31, 2009, we had standby letters of credit issued on our behalf of approximately 
$0.8 million, principally pursuant to a contracting requirement for our Government Segment's City of 
Baltimore services contract. 

Contractual Commitments 

As of March 31, 2009, our most significant commitments consisted of long-term debt, 
obligations under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furniture 
and computer equipment under capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under 
non-cancelable operating leases. As of March 31, 2009 our commitments consisted of the following: 

Within 12 1-3 3-5 More than 
($ In millions) Months Years Years 5 Years Total 

/IIOtesll.~yable I~ 2.~1 ~ 1 4.51 1 ~ 10.711 ~ =-jl ~I 7·711 
gaPitalleaseobligations 2.5 3.4 0.8 6.7 
_perating I.eases I I I 3.~ I I 3.§J I Dl1III O.~ I I I [§II 

Total contractual commitments $ 8.4 $ 11.7 $ 2.7 $ 0.4 $ 23.2 
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk 

There have not been any material changes to our interest rate risk as described in Item 7A of 
our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

For the three-months ended March 31,2009, we generated $2.7 million of revenue outside the 
U.S, mostly denominated in U.S. dollars. A change in exchange rates would not have a material 
impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of March 31, 2009, we had approximately 
$0.1 million of billed accounts receivable that are denominated in foreign currencies and would be 
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. During 2009, our average receivables subject to foreign 
currency exchange risk was immaterial and our average deferred revenue balances subject to 
foreign currency exchange risk was $0.2 million. We have not had a balance of un billed receivables 
denominated in foreign currency at any point in 2009. We recorded immaterial transaction gains or 
losses on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred revenue for the three-months 
ended March 31, 2009. 

There have not been any other material changes to our foreign currency risk as described in 
Item 7 A of our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed in the Company's reports filed under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, and summarized and reported within the time 
periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, 
management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and 
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and 
management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit 
relationship of possible controls and procedures. 

As required by Rule 13a-15(b), the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision 
and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive 
Officer and the Company's Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation 
of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the quarter covered by this 
report. Based on the foregoing, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a 
reasonable assurance level as of March 31, 2009. 

There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during 
the latest fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
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PART II. - OTHER INFORMATION 

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our 
current officers and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial 
public offering (the "Underwriters"): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et aI., United 
States District Court for the Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The 
plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit 
filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common Stock during the period August 8, 2000 
through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters agreed to allocate our 
Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers in 
exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to 
make additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined 
prices. The plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the 
Securities Act, and that the underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and 
Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been 
dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15, 2005, the District Court 
issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer 
defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope 
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification 
narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order 
preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals 
for the Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are 
pursuing the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter defendants. 
Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit on 
January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit 
denied plaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited 
class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the 
settlement. On November 13, 2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated "focus cases" filed 
a motion to dismiss the second consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in 
those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large 
part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in the "focus cases." On April 2, 2009, the 
plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approval of a new proposed settlement between plaintiffs, the 
underwriter defendants, the issuer defendants and the insurers for the issuer defendants. We intend 
to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased a Directors and 
Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result from 
these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately 
be covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other 
companies have been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same 
law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us. 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Virginia against Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan 
Americas for patent infringement related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short 
Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only Experience ("the '748 patent"), issued to the 
Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan Americas, and, during the second 
quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the claims of our 
patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment of damages for past infringement and a 
post verdict 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the 
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied 
Sybase 365's post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a 
permanent injunction prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction 
pending the outcome of any appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by 
$2.2 million and vacated the jury finding of willful infringement. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 
365 filed a request for reexamination of the '748 patent claiming that the patent is invalid. In the 
second quarter of 2008, the United States Patent and Trademark Office granted the request and 
began 
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the requested reexamination of the '748 patent. There can be no assurances to what extent the 
mailer will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could become subject to 
counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. On March 31, 2009, the district 
court entered final judgment on these mailers that includes an approximately $12 million damages 
award and the post verdict 12% royalty. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal the final judgment 
of the district court to U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. To date, the Company has not 
received or recorded any revenue or income amounts related to this jury award. 

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other 
material legal proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal 
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. 

Item 1A. Risk Factors 

There have not been any material changes to the information previously disclosed in "Item 1A. 
Risk Factors" in our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 

None. 

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities 

None. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

None. 

Item 5. Other Information 

(a) None 

(b) None. 

Item 6. Exhibits 

Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

31.1 Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

31.2 Certification of CFO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 
13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized on the 1 st day of May 2009. 

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC. 

By: lsi MAURICE B. TOSe 
Maurice B. Tose 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive 
Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report 
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on 
the dates indicated. 

lsi MAURICE B. TOSe 

Maurice B. Tose 
May 1, 2009 

IstTHOMAS M. BRANDT, JR. 

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
May 1, 2009 

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

30 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-0, May 01, 2009 



.... ~·TeleCommunicatioD 

Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Maurice B. Tose, certify that: 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Fonn 10-0 of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.; 

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in 
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material infonnation 
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over 
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit 
committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal 
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the 
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have 
a significant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting. 

lsi Maurice B. Tose 
Maurice B. Tose 
Chairman, CEO and President 
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Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATIONS 

I. Thomas M. Brandt. Jr. certify that: 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-0 of TeleCommunication Systems. Inc.; 

b) Based on my knowledge. this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the 
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report; 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in 
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(1) and 15d-15(1)) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information 
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over 
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and 
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls 
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting 
that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent 
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit 
committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal 
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the 
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial ir'formation; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have 
a ~ignificant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting. 

lsi Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Sr. Vice President & CFO 
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Enabling Convergellt 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer 
Pursuantto 18 U.S.C. 1350 

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) 

EXHIBIT 32.1 

I. Maurice B. Tose. President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of 
TeleCommunication Systems. Inc. (the "Registrant"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended March 31,2009 (the 
"Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 
(15 U.S.C. 78m); and 

(2) The infonmation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company. 

lsi Maurice B. Tose 
Maurice B. Tose 
Date: May 1, 2009 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the 
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or its staff upon request. 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-Q, May 01, 2009 



....... ·TeleCommunic:ation 

Convergent 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) 

EXHIBIT 32.2 

I. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of TeleCommunication 
Systems, Inc. (the "Registrant"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2009 (the 
"Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 
(15 U.S.C. 78m); and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company. 

lsi Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Date: May 1, 2009 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the 
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or its staff upon request. 
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